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          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Peter Berg, M.D.

          4

             Dewey Chauvin

          5  Easton Sports, Inc.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: The

          7  Chair is not with us today due to medical reasons,

          8  and we expect him to be back with us in a couple of

          9  days, full of energy and taking over again the

         10  agenda of this important Committee of Youth Services

         11  for the City of New York and the Council.

         12                 Today we're going to be conducting a

         13  final hearing of Local Bill No. 341-A, a local law

         14  to amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         15  York in relation to prohibiting the use of non-wood

         16  bats, and we're going to start our hearing. Before

         17  we do that, I want to introduce the members,

         18  colleagues who are here with me. Starting to my left

         19  we have Council Member Sara Gonzalez, following her

         20  we have Dennis Gallagher, and to my left we have

         21  Council Member Jimmy Oddo, who is the prime sponsor

         22  of the bill which we're going to be voting on and

         23  hearing final testimony today.

         24                 Can we call our first panel?

         25                 John Franco (phonetic), and we're
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          2  going to allow each witness three minutes testimony.

          3                 MR. FRANCO: Good morning. I'm here

          4  for the use of wood bats in high school. I believe

          5  that the game itself, being a professional athlete

          6  for 22 years and playing with wood bats 22 years,

          7  and seeing the other side, and also coaching for the

          8  Little League this past year, we played in some wood

          9  bat tournaments and some aluminum tournaments, and I

         10  believe the game is totally different, less

         11  offensive oriented with the aluminum bats -- with

         12  the wood bats it's less offensive oriented.

         13                 We were in a tournament, a wood bat

         14  tournament where one of my players hit a line drive

         15  off of a boy's chest, and the kid went down. I

         16  believe if it was an aluminum bat, I don't think the

         17  kid would have gotten up. I play with some

         18  professional athletes who have been hit in the head

         19  with wood bats, Al Leighter (phonetic), Billy

         20  Wagner, if they got hit in the head with aluminum

         21  bats, I think the outcome would have been totally

         22  different.

         23                 I think it's for safety reasons why.

         24  You know, I don't have that data, but I can tell you

         25  from speaking professional and being involved in
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          2  baseball since I'm four years old, I've been hit

          3  plenty of times with wood and aluminum, it still

          4  hurts no matter where you get hit from, but I just

          5  think that the -- I just feel in my heart that it

          6  would be much more safety for the kids and that's

          7  what this is all about, safety for the kids. This

          8  isn't about -- I know it's about dollars and cents

          9  and it goes a long way, that's a whole other issue,

         10  but I'm here to try to protect the kids and that's

         11  what I truly believe in my heart, that going to wood

         12  bats would also help them with safety, it would also

         13  get talent. You know, I throw batting practices for

         14  some high school teams right now, and while the ball

         15  is just getting out of my hand, it's already hitting

         16  the net, and I don't even see it coming at me.

         17                 It's dangerous. It's very, very

         18  dangerous. Like I said before, I'm sure you have

         19  people here who have all kinds of data and

         20  statistics, and this and that, I'm speaking from

         21  someone who is standing on the mound for 22 years

         22  and I can see the difference. While I'm standing in

         23  the stands watching my son play, or some of the

         24  other little leaguers, I can see the difference.

         25                 You have a gentleman who is going to
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          2  be speaking in a little while, that his son got hit

          3  in the chest. I just met him this morning. When you

          4  listen to this gentleman speak about the

          5  rehabilitation and the stuff that his son is going

          6  through, go visit this gentleman, go spend a day

          7  with him and see what he is going through with his

          8  family. You can't imagine what he's going through.

          9                 And I truly believe that if you do go

         10  over to wood bats, I think you will protect some of

         11  the kids and try to prevent some of these injuries.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         13  you. Seeing no questions from my colleagues, I want

         14  to thank you for your testimony.

         15                 Do you have a question?

         16                 Council Member Oddo has a question

         17  for you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

         19  thank John, first as a Met fan for lots of great

         20  moments, and secondly as a Staten Islander for

         21  having John come down for a busy schedule. John,

         22  just two quick questions.

         23                 One is, do you have any affiliation

         24  with any wood bat company, or any bat company for

         25  that matter?
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          2                 MR. FRANCO: I have no affiliation.

          3  I'm a retired man living on a pension right now. No,

          4  I have no affiliate with anyone right now.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: So, why did you

          6  come down here today? What was your motivation?

          7                 MR. FRANCO: I see the way the game is

          8  changing. The game is getting so much faster.  I've

          9  seen that kid get hit in the chest last year out on

         10  Long Island, and thank God he got up, and I have a

         11  son who is going into high school right now and I

         12  truly believe to measure the high school talent and

         13  the kids' talent, why not start them with the wood

         14  bats, because if they're to pursue a professional

         15  career, they're going to have to go with wood bats,

         16  and I also believe that it's probably a little bit

         17  safer for the wood bats. I'm sure there's plenty of

         18  people here who would disagree with me,

         19  professionally speaking, and someone who has been

         20  there for a long time, I really, truly believe the

         21  game may be a little bit slower with a bat.

         22                 I mean, some of the tournaments we

         23  went to, games were 10/9, you know, 11/2, but some

         24  of the games we went to with the wood bat tournament

         25  2/1, 3/2, it makes it so much enjoyable. And
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          2  talking, obviously, from a pitcher's standpoint, you

          3  like to see those type of games.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chairman, I

          5  just want to put into the record an article from the

          6  Sunday, April 4th, 2004, New York Post with the

          7  headline "Lucky to be alive." Details when Al

          8  Leighter was hit with a baseball playing a game

          9  against the Marlins, and just to remind the

         10  Committee about what Mr. Franco, you know, had that

         11  been an aluminium bat, what the outcome might have

         12  been.

         13                 Thank you, Franco, I appreciate it.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         16  you for your testimony. Can we call the next panel?

         17                 Robert Cruz, Walter Stampfel, Steve

         18  Mandl, and Dan Palombo.

         19                 Please identify yourself. And, again,

         20  I want to remind everyone, we have three minutes to

         21  testify. Identify yourself and whenever you're

         22  ready.

         23                 MR. STAMPFEL: My name is Walter

         24  Stampfel. I'm the Baseball Chairman for the Catholic

         25  High Schools Athletic Association of the Archdiocese
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          2  of New York and also the Diocese of Brooklyn. We

          3  represent over 30 Catholic high schools in the

          4  Metropolitan area, mostly New York City, and more

          5  than 1,500 student athletes that participate in

          6  baseball. Other than the PSAL, we are the largest

          7  group that will be affected by this bill.

          8                 Over the last six months, the

          9  ramifications of this bill have been discussed from

         10  many different angles - cost, enforcement, college

         11  recruiting, and, of course, safety, are just a few

         12  of the dozens of issues that have been raised. I

         13  don't come here today to argue any of those

         14  specifics. That could take hours. I come here simply

         15  to say let the experts decide.

         16                 The National Federation of High

         17  Schools, the governing body of our sport by whose

         18  rules we play, has spent substantial time over many

         19  years working to ensure the safety of our sport.

         20  Nothing is more important to them, it is their top

         21  priority.

         22                 The Federation consists of educators,

         23  administrators and coaches, and hundreds of years of

         24  experience in high school sports. Their perspective

         25  is broad and their concern for the safety of our
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          2  athletes has been compromised. The federation is

          3  constantly reviewing the rules of baseball for high

          4  schools.

          5                 In recent years, the National

          6  Federation has implemented more rigorous standards

          7  for batting helmets, catcher's equipment, and has

          8  adjusted rules for sliding to ensure player safety.

          9                 Most importantly, the Federation has

         10  already addressed the issue of aluminum bat safety

         11  by establishing weight to length ratios and barrel

         12  dimensions that bring the bats within acceptable

         13  safety standards. The Bat Exit Speed Ratio, BESR,

         14  minus three.

         15                 We have observed and supported the

         16  performance changes ourselves as coaches. From

         17  listening to some people, you would think that the

         18  issue of bat safety has been totally ignored by the

         19  federation. Some studies have even been quoted that

         20  were done before the safety standards were put into

         21  place. These studies are irrelevant in today's game.

         22                 We respectfully suggest that the

         23  National Federation has a good grasp on the safety

         24  issues at hand and urge you to vote no on this

         25  proposal.
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          2                 While we love baseball and think the

          3  issue is important, it seems to us that there are

          4  far more pressing matters of public safety on which

          5  the City Council could make an impact.

          6                 Every piece of equipment used at

          7  Catholic High School Athletic Association and

          8  baseball games meet the standards established by the

          9  National Federation. We'll use whatever they tell us

         10  to use. If they tell us to use wood bats, we'll be

         11  happy to. They are the experts in this field and we

         12  trust their judgment. They acted on this a few years

         13  ago and have not seen the need to do so since. A no

         14  vote on this proposal is not a vote against safety.

         15  It is simply a yes vote on letting the experts

         16  decide.

         17                 MR. CRUZ: Hi. My name is Robert Cruz.

         18  I'm an assistant coach at Hofstra University, and

         19  the Vice President of a travel organization, the New

         20  York Cardinals, and 16-year-old Travel Coach. I

         21  really strongly believe it's not a safety issue

         22  concerning the metal bats. We have the regulations

         23  in place, as Walter was saying, with BESR standards

         24  that we follow, the NCAA, as well as the high

         25  schools. Is there a difference in the type of game,
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          2  as John Franco was saying? Maybe, but we're talking

          3  about the safety and there is no evidence of the

          4  safety that our children are in danger of.

          5                 The metal bat companies and the NCAA

          6  and the high school, they've done the tests, and

          7  with that regulation in place, that came in place

          8  when I was playing in college, has made an impact,

          9  and these bats play like wood bats. So, I strongly

         10  oppose your idea of wood bats with high school

         11  players.

         12                 MR. POLOMBO: Good morning. My name is

         13  Dan Polombo. I'm the Head Baseball Coach at John Jay

         14  College here in New York City, and I'd like to

         15  address this on both ends of the agenda. I was the

         16  Head Baseball Coach at Ramapo College, which used

         17  only wood bats in our conference for many years. Now

         18  I've been here at John Jay, so I've seen both ends.

         19                 I will agree that maybe three, four,

         20  five years ago there was a very big difference in

         21  the way the ball came off the bat. I have noticed

         22  over the last two years, since we have been

         23  regulating this, that I no longer feel that the

         24  difference is drastic. I actually don't feel there's

         25  much of a difference anymore with the aspect of the
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          2  speed. Sure, if a ball is very close to your hands

          3  or getting into baseball stuff right now, a bat

          4  might break, a wood bat might break where an

          5  aluminum bat won't break. I no longer see it as that

          6  much of a safety issue.

          7                 I do feel that as my colleagues have

          8  said, the experts have done a wonderful job in

          9  leveling off the playing field, and although as I

         10  started off saying a few years ago, this was a

         11  major, major issue a few years ago, I no longer feel

         12  that with the technology being used by the bat

         13  companies that the difference is enough for you to

         14  have to make legislation on this, a vote on this. I

         15  feel that the organizations themselves putting the

         16  safety of the players first, I mean as the NCAA does

         17  all the time. Before an NCAA college baseball game,

         18  the umpires will come across and check every bat to

         19  make sure the bats are certified, they'll check

         20  every helmet to make sure there's no cracks in the

         21  helmet. Safety is the first issue, and I do believe

         22  that with the new technology the aluminum bats are

         23  now as safe as the wood bats, and I personally don't

         24  see a need for any kind of legislation on this.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 MR. MANDL: Good morning. My name is

          3  Steve Mandl. I'm the Head Baseball Coach at George

          4  Washington High School right here in New York City.

          5  I also work for the BCA, Baseball Coach Organization

          6  of American, I'm on the Executive Board, and I'm on

          7  the Rules Committee of the ABCA. I was the Athletic

          8  Director for 11 years at George Washington and the

          9  Assistant Principal for eight years. So, you know,

         10  students and safety are always a big issue with us.

         11                 We have one of the top programs in

         12  the United States, we've put four kids into the

         13  Major League, and God knows how many in the minor

         14  leagues. So, we're always thinking about the next

         15  level and pro ball. And my team actually practices

         16  with wood, but the reason we do has nothing to do

         17  with safety, it has to do with what John Franco

         18  said, and that is because on the next level in pro

         19  ball, that's what they're going to use.

         20                 Now, we want to go by, you know, if

         21  there is scientific evidence, you know, we care

         22  about safety, I'll be the first one to say, okay,

         23  that's it, we're going to stop. But I haven't seen

         24  any. And if we're going by, as John Franco said,

         25  observation, I don't see it.
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          2                 You know, Coach Polombo said one

          3  thing that I want to expand on which makes a lot of

          4  sense. The biggest difference that I see as a coach

          5  for 24 years in that school, there is a big

          6  difference between wood and aluminum. It has nothing

          7  to do with the ball flying off the bat or going fast

          8  or going further. The difference is in a wood bat

          9  there is a sweet spot that they call, it's a little

         10  area that when you hit the ball there, that's the

         11  best spot where the ball is going to fly off the

         12  bat.

         13                 If you hit a ball further away from

         14  that, especially on the hands, the bat will break.

         15  With a metal bat, it's not going to go further, but

         16  there is more of an area where you can hit it and

         17  you can get a base hit. So, in other words, you're

         18  making some bad hitters into good hitters, because

         19  they have a larger area to hit with, but I do not

         20  see any balls flying off the bat any quicker.

         21                 Now, many times we say, you know, a

         22  guy hits a ball, I had Manny Ramirez play for me and

         23  he used to hit balls, 430, 440 feet in high school,

         24  that's incredible, but he's in the major leagues

         25  now, he's  hitting balls 480 feet. So, he's bigger,
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          2  he's stronger and he's using wood.

          3                 I haven't seen anybody, you know, get

          4  killed or get hit. You know, my 24 years I've been

          5  very fortunate to only see one kid get hit with a

          6  ball off a metal bat and that ball hit him off the

          7  leg and that ball would have been, off any bat would

          8  have hit him.

          9                 What I was starting to say before is,

         10  people say, wow, that guy used metal, imagine how

         11  far that ball would have gone. But I coached in pro

         12  ball and one day we're taking batting practice and

         13  everybody was saying that and some kid from the high

         14  school nearby had a metal bat and we took BP with

         15  it, and the kids that were hitting that hit the ball

         16  450 feet in BP, with wood, were hitting the ball 450

         17  feet with the metal. So, if you're going by

         18  observation, I really haven't seen anything, and I

         19  haven't seen any scientific evidence yet that will

         20  tell me that the metal bat is going to hurt

         21  somebody.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         23  you. A question from Council Member Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you. Mr.

         25  Chairman, at this time I'd just like to put into the
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          2  record various documents. One is a letter from Jack

          3  Curran, who is the baseball and basketball coach at

          4  Archbishop Malloy High School, who has been coaching

          5  kids in this City for 40 years, who is a legend, has

          6  870 wins under his belt, and in his letter to the

          7  Council, describes three incidents in the last year

          8  that he witnessed.

          9                 I also want to put into the record a

         10  New York Times story, December 14th, 2006, the

         11  headline, "The Danger of Supporting Metal Bats," in

         12  which they did an interview with Coach Curran.

         13                 I also would like to put into the

         14  record a letter from the Athletic Director from

         15  Archbishop Malloy, one of the only schools to have

         16  voted against the use, continued use of metal bats.

         17                 I also would like to put into the

         18  record a letter from the President of the Nassau

         19  Suffolk Catholic High School Association out in Long

         20  Island. The Catholic High School Association last

         21  year decided to go to exclusively to wood bats. They

         22  talk about the experience, how the game is a better

         23  game, a purer game and a safer game.

         24                 I want to put into the record a

         25  letter that the Council received from the Catholic
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          2  Youth Organization in Queens County that last year

          3  went to metal -- to wood bats.

          4                 And I just want to remind my

          5  colleagues, the audience, and put into the record

          6  yet again, this is the third hearing this Council is

          7  having on the issue of metal and wood bats. It is

          8  the second hearing on this particular legislation.

          9  We are now into our 13th and 14th hour of testimony,

         10  and while I appreciate the comments of the

         11  witnesses, I would just remind my colleagues to read

         12  the transcript of the last hearing where we

         13  discussed probably ad nauseam BESR, the standards,

         14  the protocol, and also to the point we discussed,

         15  and I gave specific examples and put into the record

         16  where the National High School Federation let down

         17  the students. Let down the students, had made

         18  decisions to put in changes, and then delayed those

         19  decisions. And as I said then and I'll say now, that

         20  where the overseeing bodies have failed to live up

         21  to their responsibility and protect these kids, it

         22  falls into our laps. I wish it hadn't, but in fact

         23  it has, and we will act in that vacuum.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank
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          2  you, Council member. I want to thank the panel for

          3  your testimony.

          4                 Are there any further questions from

          5  any colleagues? Oh, I see Council Member Dennis

          6  Gallagher.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: I'm sorry.

          8  Let me just also, for my colleague James Oddo, the

          9  Queens CYO, I believe it's been three years, or

         10  three seasons, since they have banned the use of

         11  aluminum bats, and I have contacted them and spoken

         12  to many of them and they say that the game is much

         13  better.

         14                 But I do have a question for the

         15  panel, if each one of you could tell me. Does your

         16  league, or the teams that you're associated with, do

         17  they have any sponsorship from the bat companies?

         18                 MR. MANDL: I will speak for myself,

         19  I'm with PSAL. As far as I know, nobody. I don't

         20  think we're allowed to. As a matter of fact, a few

         21  years ago we were going to get sponsors, not from

         22  bats, and we were told if we wore a patch, and we

         23  were told we can't do that. So, we don't get

         24  sponsored from anybody.

         25                 MR. POLOMBO: Speaking for John Jay
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          2  College, we have no sponsorships. We go out and buy

          3  the most inexpensive bats we can.

          4                 MR. STAMPFEL: I'm not aware of any

          5  schools that have any type of contract with any bat

          6  company.

          7                 MR. CRUZ: I believe Hofstra has a

          8  partial, it's equipment, it's everything, with

          9  turfs, gloves, not just bats. They pay for it,

         10  though. And my summer program, the parents, they go

         11  out and buy their products.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         14  you, gentlemen.

         15                 Our next witness is Mr. Domalewski.

         16  You can start, sir.

         17                 MR. DOMALEWSKI: Council, thank you. I

         18  wouldn't be one of the first ones to say that

         19  government should really not interfere with

         20  baseball, however, you're dealing with a product

         21  issue where product has become unsafe, and this

         22  product can't be governed by the manufacturers, not

         23  being governed by the heads of the leagues, and

         24  they're not being governed even by parents, because

         25  as a parent, too, I always tried to put the best bat
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          2  in my kid's hand because I loved to see him hit.

          3                 You are now being called to the

          4  carpet to be advocates for these youth and their

          5  safety. Everybody here who is testifying are adults.

          6  These kids do not have a choice as to what is going

          7  into their hands. And these bats have become so

          8  technologically advanced that they have become

          9  weapons for the children who are staring down the

         10  barrels.

         11                 I'd like to read this one ad to you.

         12  This comes from the December issue of Men's Health

         13  Magazine, page 34. It is for the Easton Stealth Comp

         14  CNT baseball and softball bat. "Witness the world's

         15  first Carbon Nanotube all composite bat. Fancy NASA

         16  peak (sic) for fully capable of beaning the third

         17  baseman. The carbon composite material is 16 times

         18  stronger than steel, aligned so as to widen the

         19  sweet spot across the entire barrel. The handle

         20  flexes slightly, catapulting the ball on contact.

         21  Somehow it's completely legal. $350, Easton.com."

         22                 I have witnessed for years balls

         23  coming off aluminum bats. Everybody who plays the

         24  game, everybody who coaches the kids just realize

         25  that not only does the ball come off these bats
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          2  faster, but the way they are balanced, now these

          3  kids are able to swing these bats around.

          4                 It is said that a 13-year-old boy can

          5  get the bat around as fast as a professional ball

          6  player. So, you're dealing with something that is

          7  not only catapulted off the bat, but something that

          8  comes around faster.

          9                 My son was pitching and got caught in

         10  the chest. There is a condition called commotio

         11  cordis where the placement of the impact and the

         12  timing was so that it sent my son into cardiac

         13  arrest. He died on the field, and he was brought

         14  back through CPR. During that time he lost oxygen to

         15  his brain for somewhere from 15 to 20 minutes. He

         16  then spent the next four to six weeks at home, and

         17  is now dealing with a traumatic brain injury. You

         18  know, people ask me, how is your son doing? And I

         19  say, well, from the point of where he died on the

         20  field, was in a coma on life support to the time

         21  that he is now where he can't walk. He has limited

         22  vision, if any. He can't talk. But God willing, he

         23  keeps making little progress at a time. You know, my

         24  son is doing a sentence, and to me the only thing he

         25  did wrong was to pitch to a guy holding a metal bat.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Council

          3  Member Oddo.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I just want to

          5  thank Mr. Domalewski for coming down, and I just

          6  want my colleagues to understand that when Lew

          7  Fidler and I and the staff sat to figure out

          8  witnesses, whether it was Deb Patch or Joe

          9  Domalewski, we had a tough time coming to grips with

         10  whether we should have these folks testify, because

         11  there is a fine line between educating the public

         12  and putting the face on this issue, and exploiting

         13  tragedy and near tragedy, and I just want everyone

         14  to know that Deb Patch last time, and Joe Domalewski

         15  this time wanted to be here, they wanted to tell

         16  their story, so that other parents don't have to

         17  endure what they have endured. And I just want to

         18  thank you for testifying.

         19                 MR. DOMALEWSKI: May I add something?

         20  Would it be okay?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Sure.

         22                 MR. DOMALEWSKI: One of the questions

         23  was, well, if it was a wood bat would this have

         24  happened? My answer would be no. You know, some

         25  towns now in New Jersey have moved to wood bats. You
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          2  know, other towns now what they are doing is they

          3  are moving the mounds back, they are putting chest

          4  protectors on the kids, they're trying to do all

          5  these other things for safety, but you know what?

          6  They're just putting an aspirin in the situation and

          7  not getting at the real cause of the pain.

          8                 These aluminum bats have just become

          9  so advanced that they are dangerous, and these kids

         10  just do not have a choice because these bats are

         11  being put in their hands by adults.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         14  you, sir. Thank you for testifying.

         15                 Our next panel is Abraham Key, Dwight

         16  Raiford and Richard Christine. I will ask you to

         17  identify yourself and please remember three minutes

         18  per testimony.

         19                 MR. KEY: My name is Abraham Key, and

         20  I'm here today as the Vice President and Treasurer

         21  of USA baseball headquartered in Durham, North

         22  Carolina. I would like to read for the record a

         23  letter to Chairman Fidler and his fellow Committee

         24  members, from Paul Seiler, the Executive Director of

         25  USA Baseball.
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          2                 "It is our understanding that the New

          3  York City Council will once again consider

          4  prohibiting the use of non-wood bats in New York

          5  City as outlined in Proposed Int. No. 341-A.

          6                 As we have noted over the course of

          7  the last 4 years, baseball leagues and associations

          8  across the nation have established rules and

          9  regulations for their game and players. The safety

         10  of players is the first consideration of all

         11  baseball associations aligned under USA Baseball."

         12                 And USA Baseball is the national

         13  governing for baseball as recognized by the United

         14  States Olympic Committee.

         15                 "To date, no elected legislative body

         16  has mandated a change in the rules of baseball

         17  leagues with respect to bats. Leagues, associations

         18  and tournaments may determine that they will be

         19  'wood-only,' but never has a legislative body

         20  determined a Leagues' rules.

         21                 Baseball leagues annually evaluate

         22  their rules and regulate their bats. Leagues have,

         23  and do, make changes with respect to bats. USA

         24  Baseball is opposed to the New York City Council

         25  legislation to ban aluminum bats from the city's
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          2  high school baseball leagues, we view it as

          3  unnecessary given the current record of safety in

          4  the game and the stewardship that baseball leagues

          5  and associations have for their players and the

          6  game.

          7                 In the interest of working with

          8  Council to address their concerns, USA Baseball

          9  recently offered to co-author a study with input

         10  from Councilman Oddo's office."

         11                 And attached to the letter from Paul

         12  Seiler, you will find the proposed research project

         13  that was proposed to Councilman Oddo.

         14                 Such offer was declined by Councilman

         15  Oddo.

         16                 "Additionally and for the record,

         17  please note that in the Montana State Legislature

         18  recently, the House Business and Labor Committee

         19  voted 12 to 4 to oppose a bill to mandate wood-only

         20  bats in the state's American Legion organization.

         21                 Again, we urge you to consider the

         22  facts and opinions of the many national

         23  organizations charged with the administration and

         24  safety of our sport at the grassroots level, and

         25  thank you for consideration of USA Baseball's
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          2  views."

          3                 I also might add a couple of

          4  additional notes. USA Baseball, as a leading

          5  governing body of amateur baseball in the US, from

          6  young children aged four and five years old in

          7  T-ball to the Olympic Team, New York City Baseball

          8  is surprised that New York City Council would

          9  consider banning aluminum bats at the high school

         10  level.

         11                 There is no evidence to suggest that

         12  aluminum bats are more dangerous than wood. And to

         13  the contrary, scores of data, which you will hear

         14  about shortly, definitive sources indicate that

         15  aluminum bats do not pose an unnecessary safety

         16  risk.

         17                 MR. CHRISTIE: Good morning. My name

         18  is Richard Christie. I'm a Board of Director for

         19  PONY Baseball/Softball. I am also the Vice President

         20  of the Kings Plaza Youth Organization, and finally,

         21  just like many of you, am a very concerned parent or

         22  grandparent for the safety of our children.

         23                 I would like to thank you for

         24  allowing me to take some time from your very busy

         25  schedule to express my views and opposition to Bill
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          2  No. 341-A, proposing to ban aluminum bats in high

          3  school ages in New York City.

          4                 While I commend you for your good

          5  intentions, I also believe you cannot make any sport

          6  100 percent injury-free. As a volunteer for

          7  approximately 40 years in youth baseball and

          8  softball, I have seen many injuries, as I am sure

          9  you have. Every time I see an injury I ask myself

         10  the same question, what can we do to guarantee this

         11  will not happen again, and almost every time come up

         12  with the same answer, nothing, as it was a freak

         13  accident.

         14                 I've seen wood bats split and go

         15  flying back at the pitcher like a spear, and in my

         16  opinion, have the capability of doing more harm at

         17  times than a metal bat.

         18                 I have a nine-year-old grandson

         19  playing baseball, and just like any other parent, or

         20  grandparent, the first concern is the safety of our

         21  children. Now I ask you what parent or grandparent

         22  would let their own flesh and blood play in an

         23  environment that has data that proves that aluminum

         24  bats would be detrimental to their child?

         25                 Once again, I thank you for your
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          2  concern, but do honestly believe you are

          3  overreacting to a unproven theory. Thank you.

          4                 MR. RAIFORD: Good morning. My name is

          5  Dwight Raiford. I'm here in several capacities. I am

          6  a member of the Board of Directors of Little League

          7  Baseball and Softball in a nation of the world's

          8  largest youth sports organization, and between 2001

          9  and 2004, I had the honor of being Chairman of the

         10  Board of Little League Baseball, I continue as a

         11  member of the Board of Directors.

         12                 I'm also the co-founder with my wife

         13  Iris of Harlem Little League, which we started in

         14  1989 and have had more than 600 kids playing every

         15  year in Little League ages five to 18.

         16                 Finally, I serve as a member of the

         17  Board of Trustees of the Collegiate School in New

         18  York City. We have a baseball program, and this

         19  legislation would impact the program.

         20                 I want to go on record as saying,

         21  first of all, in anticipation of the question does

         22  Little League Baseball receive funding from, any

         23  funds from sporting goods manufacturers or bat

         24  manufacturers? And I want to say, yes, we do. Two

         25  percent of our $18 million revenue comes from
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          2  royalties from bat manufacturers. That is so that we

          3  can put the Little League stamp of approval on bats.

          4                 Please note that whether it is a

          5  metal bat or a wood bat, we would still receive that

          6  royalty. In fact, we think that if metal bats were

          7  banned, that our royalties might go up. So, the

          8  issue for us is not financial, but is safety.

          9                 Finally, you might ask why am I here,

         10  since we don't have any skin in the game, Council

         11  Member Oddo said he believes this legislation will

         12  be a tidal wave so that we can change at all levels.

         13  Consequently, I feel compelled to speak.

         14                 Council Member Oddo has said we have

         15  heard about BFPs and BSBRs. He is absolutely

         16  correct. We have been inundated with an overwhelming

         17  amount of data, which shows that non-wood bats are

         18  no more dangerous than wood bats.

         19                 I'm going to leave you with two

         20  pieces of data. Over the past 60 years, there have

         21  been hundreds of millions of Little League games

         22  played. That's equal to more than 20,000 years of

         23  Major League Baseball. During that time there have

         24  been exactly eight fatalities, eight, that resulted

         25  as a result of a little league-er being struck by a

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  batted ball. In six of those instances, the bat that

          3  was used was wood. Two instances, which occurred in

          4  1971, '73, came off metal bats 20 years before we

          5  regulated bats.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

          8  you.

          9                 Council Member Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes. We

         11  received, the members of the Council received the

         12  letter co-signed by Abraham Key and Rich Christie,

         13  and in it they talk about reasons why going to metal

         14  bats would be a problem. And it's the same script,

         15  we hear it constantly. One of them is that metal

         16  bats last longer than wood and it's a cost issue.

         17  And, in fact, in a letter to us, they point out that

         18  aluminum bats may cost more initially, but they last

         19  for years.

         20                 We want to put into the record two

         21  documents, one is from 1997, then confidential at

         22  the time. One is from 1999, Baseball/Softball

         23  Strategic Plan from Easton, and one is from 1997,

         24  when it talks about in their own internal document

         25  that lifecycle for the products are 12 to 24 months.
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          2                 The other thing we want to put into

          3  the record is a document from Hillerich and

          4  Bradsby.  It's a market assessment. I don't have the

          5  year, but I will make it part of the record, which

          6  said the best players in baseball and softball are

          7  demanding new performance products on a yearly

          8  basis.

          9                 So, these gentlemen are giving me the

         10  opportunity to negate yet again one of their bedrock

         11  arguments that metal bats last longer.

         12                 Metal bats once last longer when I

         13  was nine years old playing on Buddy Cusak Field. The

         14  metal bats of today with their aerospace NASA

         15  technology, are not built for endurance, they're

         16  built for performance, and they know it and the

         17  parents at home know it. Their metal bats don't last

         18  five years or four years or three years or two

         19  years. I have parents of 12 year olds telling me

         20  three-quarters of the way through in the season,

         21  their performance-based bats are dead and they need

         22  to go out and get a new bat.

         23                 As far as the study that was offered,

         24  I will show you plenty of documents, internal

         25  documents from court cases, where their blueprint
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          2  for success has always been the same - delay, delay,

          3  delay. Offer to study, offer to study, offer to

          4  study. There is nothing that that new study could

          5  come out that would show us anything new along the

          6  line. It's part of their strategy.

          7                 And, listen, it's been a successful

          8  strategy to date. I don't blame them from going back

          9  to the well. It's not going to work on this

         10  occasion. And I'll just say this: I don't get it. I

         11  have never gotten it why the organizations, the

         12  leagues, the overseeing bodies don't want to do

         13  everything possible to protect kids, but we just

         14  produced this from the Internet. It's PONY Rules and

         15  Regulations. This is the rule book for PONY

         16  baseball. Here's page one, kids playing baseball.

         17  Look at page two. Proud supporter of PONY baseball

         18  for more than 33 years. Page two, a wonderful ad

         19  from Easton. This is the incestuous relationship I'm

         20  talking about. These gentlemen are part of what I

         21  call the "metal bat cartel." So, everything that

         22  they say I think is prejudiced by the fact that they

         23  have a wonderful relationship with the bat

         24  manufacturers. And I'll close with this: I was proud

         25  of the fact that the Mid-Island Little League went

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  to the Little League World Series. You heard

          3  testimony last time from Joe Calabrese, the father

          4  of one of the star pitchers, his kid went down there

          5  with two bats to Little League baseball to

          6  Williamsport. He came back with 12, and that's part

          7  of the relationship. It's a wonderful relationship

          8  they have. It's personally beneficial to people like

          9  Mr. Keen (phonetic), it's personally beneficial to

         10  all of them.

         11                 I think it's clouded their judgment

         12  from doing everything possible to protect our young

         13  kids, and I am, to this day six years later, I am

         14  still amazed at it.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         16  you, gentlemen. No further questions for any of the

         17  colleagues. I also want to recognize Council Member

         18  Melissa Mark-Viverito, who has joined us.

         19                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         20                 Our next panel is Phil Romero and

         21  Richard Guarino.

         22                 We're going to ask, of you have any

         23  questions, please step out into the hallway so we

         24  can continue our hearing.

         25                 Gentlemen, just identify yourselves,
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          2  and I want to remind you, we have three minutes for

          3  your individual testimony.

          4                 MR. GUARINO: Good morning. My name is

          5  Rich Guarino, and I am the Vice President of Staten

          6  Island Baseball Alliance, the parent organization of

          7  Staten Island's open baseball leagues, which

          8  switched to wood bats eight years ago.

          9                 I'm not here to quote any scientific

         10  data, but to talk about real on-the-field

         11  experiences. Frankly, anyone who watches a game

         12  played with high-tech bats and one played with wood

         13  bats, can immediately see the difference. Balls come

         14  off the high-tech bats faster and travel further.

         15                 Let me give you an example. The last

         16  year we used high-tech bats, two of our better TM

         17  Major League teams played the game at Mariner's

         18  Harbor, which is a smallish fenced in ball park. The

         19  teams combined to hit a total of 12 home runs in one

         20  seven-inning game. The following year, when we went

         21  to wood bats, in 12 weekend double headers, there

         22  was a total of only 22 home runs hit for the whole

         23  season.

         24                 Did our switch to it have an adverse

         25  affect on the popularity of our leagues? Just the
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          2  opposite. We have become the largest open sand lot

          3  league in the metropolitan area, drawing teams from

          4  Brooklyn and Queens and players from the five

          5  boroughs and New Jersey.

          6                 Until last season, we even had a team

          7  from Long Island, the Storm, travel to play in our

          8  wood bat leagues.

          9                 While we're still in the

         10  organizational stage, it appears that we will have

         11  36 teams this year. To those who say that there will

         12  be a decline in interest among young players as a

         13  consequence of switching to wood. I cite a wood bat

         14  tourney which will be played on Staten Island in

         15  late June.

         16                 Originally there was supposed to be

         17  24 teams, each 14 and under and 16 and under

         18  categories, which are the high school age

         19  categories, while those categories immediately

         20  filled up, and had to be expanded to 32 teams for

         21  each division.

         22                 Also let me point out that the cost

         23  is no longer an excuse. Originally, some 30 years

         24  ago, cost was the reason for the switch to aluminum

         25  bats, which then performed no differently than wood
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          2  and didn't cost much more. Today, high-tech bats

          3  sell for as much as $350, or what seven or eight

          4  wood bats cost. In addition, there are now composite

          5  bats like the Baum bat (phonetic), which often last

          6  for two seasons and which are approved by Major

          7  League Baseball for use in rookie league, short

          8  season A ball, like the Staten Island Yankees and

          9  Brooklyn Cyclones. A team could buy six composite

         10  bats for approximately $650 with the approximate

         11  cost of two top of the line high-tech bats. If this

         12  body is not prepared to mandate a switch to wood

         13  bats in our high schools, it must assume share of

         14  the responsibility for the injury, or God forbid,

         15  the death of a high school player.

         16                 One last point is the issue of

         17  fairness. If the City Council is not prepared to

         18  prohibit high-tech bats in our high schools, then it

         19  has an obligation to create a level playing field by

         20  providing all of our high schools with high-tech

         21  bats. Players in schools, in low-income areas, can't

         22  afford top of the line high-tech bats. Consequently

         23  players on teams from middle class areas have an

         24  advantage because they have access to bats with

         25  larger sweet spots and greater trampoline effect.
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          2                 Thank you for your time.

          3                 MR. ROMERO: Good morning. My name is

          4  Philip Romero. I'm head coach of the Christopher

          5  Columbus varsity baseball team in the Bronx.

          6  Aluminum bats create a perversion of the game, where

          7  we now get softball scores in baseball games - 17 to

          8  7 instead of 3 to 2.

          9                 In my view, aluminum bats are no

         10  better than steroids for the game of baseball.

         11                 I think the legislation you are

         12  considering today should be known as Brandon's Law

         13  after Brandon Patch - no more aluminum bats in

         14  baseball.

         15                 Early this school year, our captain,

         16  Moises Rodriguez, brought to my attention an article

         17  regarding the City Council proposed ban on aluminum

         18  bats. Our Fall baseball club at Columbus had over 50

         19  participants this year. After reading the article, I

         20  asked my players how they felt about the proposed

         21  ban. Every player - every player thought the ban was

         22  a good idea.

         23                 Our captain asked me if the team

         24  could write a letter in support of our becoming a

         25  wood bat league? I said okay, and I did a little
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          2  research and I wrote the letter. What I found was

          3  that the widening of the sweet spot of the bat is

          4  the problem. The ball is hit really well off the bat

          5  much more often, whereas with wood you have to hit

          6  it perfectly and in the perfect spot. The larger

          7  sweet spots on aluminum bats are precisely what make

          8  them dangerous. A player can hit a ball very hard

          9  with a wood bat on occasion. Aluminum bats allow the

         10  ball to be hit with that same power more often

         11  because the sweet spot is larger. Sometimes in a pro

         12  game you will hear the crack of the bat and the

         13  announcer will say "wow, he got all of that one."

         14  Well, with aluminum bats, kids are able to hit like

         15  that much of the time, instead of only rarely. That

         16  is what makes them more dangerous - the greater

         17  percentage chance that the ball will be hit hard off

         18  the enlarged, unnatural sweet spot of an aluminum

         19  bat.

         20                 One of our former Columbus students,

         21  Loan Le, is now at Princeton, studying engineering.

         22  She explains it this way:

         23                 Metals are more elastic than wood

         24  because they are monolythic (uniform), whereas wood

         25  is layered, and the shock waves during the impact
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          2  partially reflect from the layers and dissipate

          3  their energy into heat.

          4                 When the aluminum bat impacts the

          5  ball, the continuous nature of the metal allows for

          6  energy to bounce back much more efficiently (in

          7  other words, there are no physical

          8  barriers/resistance to the transfer of energy).

          9                 In addition, having played and

         10  coached through the transition from wood to

         11  aluminum, I know from first-hand experience that the

         12  ball comes off the bat harder with aluminum than

         13  with wood.

         14                 The letter my team wrote was signed

         15  by my Principal, the APO, my Athletic Director, my

         16  Assistant Coach, and by the members of the

         17  Christopher Columbus baseball program.

         18                 We sent the letter to every Council

         19  member by e-mail. We were heartened to get personal

         20  responses from Speaker Quinn and sponsors of the

         21  bill, most notably, Councilman Oddo, whom I would

         22  like to thank for his tireless efforts on this

         23  legislation.

         24                 Councilman Oddo forwarded my name to

         25  a reporter at National Public Radio, and I got my 15
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          2  minutes of fame arguing in favor of the ban on

          3  aluminum bats.

          4                 Now it has brought me here. Our

          5  preference for wood over aluminum basically comes

          6  down to three points: First, though it matters the

          7  least, wood bats are far more aesthetically

          8  pleasing. I know of no one who prefers the ping of

          9  an aluminum bat to the crack of a wood bat. All

         10  things being equal, virtually everyone prefers the

         11  sound of wood.

         12                 Second, in most other sports, our

         13  players use the same equipment as those the pros

         14  use. We don't use plastic basketballs or footballs,

         15  nor aluminum hockey pucks. Sure, our tennis players

         16  now use aluminum rackets, but so do the pros.

         17                 Professional baseball players do not

         18  use aluminum bats. Players who start and live life

         19  with aluminum often have trouble with the transition

         20  to wood. I friend of mine, David McCarty, first

         21  round pick of the Twins, went through this problem,

         22  as have many others. If we want our students to have

         23  the best chance at becoming professional baseball

         24  players, creating a wood bat league would be a very

         25  good idea.
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          2                 But more importantly, though, this is

          3  a critical safety issue. One reason that Major

          4  League Baseball doesn't go to aluminum bats is that

          5  it would be incredibly dangerous, given the velocity

          6  of the pictures and the power of the hitters.

          7                 But these players come from

          8  somewhere, our schools. Kids in the public schools

          9  sometimes throw 90 miles an hour, like Jason

         10  Marquis, and hitters like Manny Ramirez and Bobby

         11  Bonilla come out of these schools. This is a very

         12  dangerous situation for our infielders and

         13  especially our pitchers.

         14                 Do I have any more time?

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Yes, I

         16  need to ask you to wrap up.

         17                 MR. ROMERO: Okay. I'll just quote Jim

         18  Morris, head coach at the University of Miami."Any

         19  idiot can see that the ball jumps off an aluminum

         20  bat faster than off a wooden bat." Thank you.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         22  you.

         23                 Thank you for your testimony.

         24                 Our next panel is Jim Darby, David

         25  Etinger, Dewey Chauvin, Peter Berg and George
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          2  Manning.

          3                 MR. DARBY: In that order?

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: In whatever

          5  order you want.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Whatever

          7  order you decide.

          8                 I again want to remind the panel that

          9  each individual has a three-minute testimony, and

         10  please identify yourself before you start your

         11  testimony.

         12                 MR. DARBY: Okay, then I'll start. I'm

         13  Jim Darby of Easton Sports, and with all due respect

         14  to Mr. Romero's comment about the scoring, just so

         15  everybody knows, the national average scoring in

         16  high school baseball, the average game is six to

         17  four, which is the same as the American League.

         18                 Anyway, what I would like to do is

         19  read a couple of lines from e-mails that we have

         20  come across, starting with one on October the 17th,

         21  prior to the first hearing last October. It was an

         22  e-mail from Steven Matteo, Chief of Staff to

         23  Councilman Oddo, to Mr. Richard Greenwald, Dr.

         24  Richard Greenwald, who is one of the gentleman who

         25  conducted the infamous Brown Study, testing wood and
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          2  aluminum bats back in 1999. And in this e-mail, Mr.

          3  Matteo asked Mr. Greenwald if he could come to the

          4  hearing, last October, and he said, and this is all

          5  in the documentation we're supplying, we are

          6  currently in need of scientific information that

          7  states that aluminum bats outperform wood bats.

          8                 I'd like to read now some of the

          9  replies from Dr. Greenwald.

         10                 He stated: "I would oppose any

         11  statement that linked such a limitation on using

         12  non-wood bats to injury, simply because there are no

         13  scientific data to support this contention. This is

         14  an important and overlooked point. I urge Councilman

         15  Oddo to consider this as you move forward."

         16                 Number two: "You mix the notion of

         17  increased batted ball speed with safety. This is a

         18  significant concern for me. I am not aware of any

         19  published peer reviewed scientific data that

         20  supports the notion that there has been an increase

         21  in injuries related to being struck by a batted ball

         22  in baseball or softball at any level of play due to

         23  an increased batted ball speed or bat performance.

         24  Baseball and softball appear to have remained at the

         25  very low end of the injury incidents list."
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          2                 In later e-mails, again being turned

          3  to the Council, Dr. Greenwald wrote: "While it is

          4  true that some of the metal bats used in the Frozen

          5  Ropes Study..." which is the Brown Study "... did

          6  outperform wood bats, I do not believe that any of

          7  these bats would qualify under today's NCAA BESR

          8  test."

          9                 Last he wrote, "Therefore the bats

         10  used in this study do not tell you how today's bats

         11  perform relative to wood."

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 MR. ETTINGER: I'm David Ettinger. I'm

         14  a lawyer for Easton and I want to speak to the

         15  legality of the bill, and in short, the bill is

         16  illegal under New York Law for several reasons.

         17                 First, New York Law, the case law

         18  requires that a local law cannot rely on a

         19  "speculative and unfounded perception of health

         20  risks." There has got to be science, and there is no

         21  scientific evidence supporting this bill.

         22                 Number two, New York Law requires

         23  that you can't prohibit a product like a metal bat,

         24  unless you can show that it's impossible to regulate

         25  that product.
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          2                 There has been no showing that

          3  aluminum bats could not be regulated, and indeed the

          4  evidence shows they can be dampened, if necessary,

          5  and while we think that's unjustified, if the

          6  Council wanted to, it could require that aluminum

          7  bats hit a little less. The law doesn't allow you to

          8  flat prohibit that product if it can be regulated.

          9                 Third, the latest version of this law

         10  delegates to Major League Baseball the ability to

         11  approve wood composite bats. Those bats are allowed,

         12  to the extent they're approved, by Major League

         13  Baseball. It is illegal to give a private party that

         14  power. To turn over to a private party that power,

         15  especially when that private party may have

         16  completely different purposes than the City of New

         17  York might have -- we took a look at, we pulled the

         18  actual rules of Major League Baseball for composite

         19  bats. We found, for example, this is in our written

         20  statement, that the bat is not supposed to be too

         21  durable. It is supposed to break when jammed on an

         22  inside pitch, and I would ask you, is it in the

         23  interest of high school students in New York that

         24  bats break easily, either for safety or cost?

         25                 More importantly, and finally, the

                                                            47

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  Major League Baseball rules show the contradiction

          3  that's at the heart of this bill. When you look at

          4  those Major League Baseball rules, and I urge you

          5  all to do so if you haven't, you find that the tests

          6  that they use for the Major League Baseball

          7  determination, which is adopted by your bill, are

          8  the NCAA BESR tests. They have two tests. The first

          9  one is the version that was used by the NCAA until

         10  this year; and the second one is the current Canon

         11  test, both using the BESR.

         12                 Well, if there is nothing wrong with

         13  that BESR test, which is currently the test that the

         14  high schools are required to use, according to high

         15  school federation, then why is there a bill at all?

         16  And if, as Councilman Oddo and others have said,

         17  that there is something wrong with the current

         18  testing, then why are you putting it in your bill,

         19  and adopting it in your own bill? Because that's

         20  exactly what Major League Baseball does.

         21                 With all due respect, this bill is

         22  utterly contradictory, and utterly irrational. Thank

         23  you.

         24                 MR. MANNING: I'm George Manning, and

         25  I'm here representing Hillerich and Bradsby. I'm an
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          2  engineer by training and experience. You've

          3  indicated that you've heard a lot about BESR. I

          4  don't know whether everybody understands the BESR,

          5  but basically, it's based on taking the best

          6  performing wood, Major League bats and testing them

          7  in a laboratory setting, find out how they perform,

          8  and then using that limit to limit all non-wood

          9  bats, so they cannot hit at a higher level than the

         10  best performing wood bats.

         11                 In addition, the CPSC back in the

         12  early 2000s studied the issue, they had a petition

         13  to ban aluminum bats. They arrived at the decision

         14  that there was no basis to do that. In addition, we

         15  heard a little earlier about commotio cordis, and I

         16  quote from a 2002 study in the Journal of

         17  Pediatrics, showed children are at greatest risk of

         18  commotio cordis when they are hit by a baseball

         19  traveling 40 miles an hour, and the risk actually

         20  decreases with faster projectiles. Decreases with

         21  faster projectiles.

         22                 In addition, the Little League keeps

         23  very detailed injuries. Going from 1992 to 2004, the

         24  number of batted ball injuries decreased by 82

         25  percent from 1992 to 2004. That's a decrease.
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          2                 The data, and I have lots of it here,

          3  does not support the concern for safety.

          4                 One of the things I was -- I have

          5  been Chair of the Baseball/Softball Council of the

          6  Sporting Goods Manufacturers Association, and a

          7  little over two years ago, we decided to fund an

          8  independent study by Dr. Mueller and his associates

          9  at the University at North Carolina. The basic study

         10  he and his associates set up the parameters, we

         11  provide the funding. They are looking at Division 1

         12  college players playing with non-wood bats during

         13  the season and then looking at many of these same

         14  players playing in summer leagues with wood bats.

         15                 He's two-year interim study, because

         16  we're two years into the three-year study, reports

         17  that there is no conclusion that can be drawn, other

         18  than that the injury rate with wood and non-wood are

         19  very, very low. However, the more severe injuries

         20  occurred with wood in this study.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 DR. BERG: Thank you. My name is Dr.

         23  Peter Berg, I have no affiliation with any bat

         24  companies, or manufacturers, and I'm here to testify

         25  based on the fact that I am, number one, a clinical

                                                            50

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  assistant professor of ophthalmology at Downstate

          3  and specialize in ocular plastics and trauma, I'm a

          4  baseball parent who has three boys playing in

          5  Sandlot baseball, both with wood and metal bats, and

          6  thirdly, I'm a travel baseball coach for the last

          7  ten years. I also have experience as an emergency

          8  room physician and as a surgical resident at the

          9  University of Pennsylvania. And I think my

         10  perspective may be somewhat unique of the people who

         11  testified here. What I think is important to realize

         12  as the Council is that your job right now is really

         13  one job, and that is to vote on whether there is a

         14  real safety issue with wood versus metal bats, and

         15  unfortunately for this bill, there is no peer

         16  reviewed or objective evidence to support this. What

         17  you've presented so far are what are called

         18  "anecdotal evidence" or "case reports," and while

         19  my heart goes out to the Domalewskis and the Patch

         20  family, the sad truth is that the statistics do not

         21  back up the fact that these injuries would not have

         22  occurred with metal bats or wood bats with the same

         23  injury. Commotio cordis has to do with the timing of

         24  the injury and has to do with the fact, as was

         25  before mentioned, that the speed is not as
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          2  important. Head injuries occur in both. The danger

          3  in baseball is line drives, and hard line drives

          4  come off wood bats and metal bats. All the

          5  statistics have shown in fact of anything, that

          6  there may be more danger with wood bats.

          7                 In addition, the NCAA in the last

          8  seven years has had three deaths from bats, two were

          9  from wood bats. There are six out of eight deaths in

         10  Little League from wood bats, okay? And all the data

         11  that I'm aware of shows that the danger is

         12  equivalent between these bats. There is not a single

         13  scientific study of any large number that shows any

         14  increased danger from a metal bat versus a wood bat.

         15                 So, the unfortunate truth, and my

         16  condolences to these families, and with all due

         17  respect to John Franco, is that all these statements

         18  are being made on personal perceptions that are not

         19  backed up by any statistical, epidemiologic or other

         20  scientific data, and therefore the Council should

         21  not be legislating on this issue. Whether wood bats

         22  are a better game than metal bats is irrelevant

         23  here. The one issue you should be considering is, is

         24  there a safety issue here, and the preponderance of

         25  evidence all shows that there is not. I can
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          2  understand why the Council might not want to have

          3  USA Baseball study this, they will come up with the

          4  same conclusion, that there is no difference in

          5  danger between the two bats, which has confirmed all

          6  the large studies that have been done previously.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Can I just

          9  sanitize the record somewhat?

         10                 Mr. Manning trotted out the old

         11  statistic from Little League Baseball. It used to be

         12  76 percent decrease in injuries, now it's 82

         13  percent. We argued this ad nauseam let me put it on

         14  the record again. It is an 82 percent decrease in

         15  secondary insurance claims to Little League

         16  Baseball. They want to say that's tantamount to a

         17  decrease in injuries, I don't believe it's the same.

         18                 I found it funny to hear that you

         19  funded an independent study of Dr. Mueller. Dr.

         20  Mueller, who testified under my questioning from me

         21  that he was paid by the Sporting Good manufacturers

         22  to go to Boston to testify against that, to come

         23  here to testify against that.

         24                 The United States Consumer Products

         25  Safety Commission never said that metal bats were
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          2  safe, they said it was inconclusive. In fact, an

          3  earlier draft that we put on the record were much

          4  harsher in their assessment. Somehow that did not

          5  make it into the final draft.

          6                 You talk about injuries, well just

          7  off the top of my head, Billy Uto, the Sanchez kid,

          8  the White kid, Anthony Ricci, John Bags, Ryan Mills.

          9  You talk about deaths from wooden bats, those are

         10  kids and young people who were injured, and I can

         11  name a ton of other names who have been injured.

         12                 With reference to the e-mail from my

         13  Chief of Staff, I probably should give him a raise,

         14  because what he was doing is his due diligence. He

         15  was reaching out to the medical community, and that

         16  man's opinion, you did not misstate it, Mr. Darby,

         17  that was his opinion. That was one man's opinion. We

         18  reached out to many people, people that testified in

         19  the bomb suit against you, people that testified

         20  previously, some people responded, some people

         21  didn't, some people responded in that manner.

         22                 Mr. Ettinger, you know I respect you.

         23  You are a warrior, you're a brilliant attorney and

         24  you're worth the $500 or $1,000 an hour that you

         25  get. If this bill is illegal, you will sue, because
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          2  that's what you've done. And your threat of a

          3  lawsuit is why you reached the protocol you did with

          4  the NCAA in 1999, and the NCAA backed down.

          5                 We knew it was the same test. I think

          6  by now you realized that we do a little bit of our

          7  homework. This is not a question, sir, I'm just

          8  making a statement. We do a little bit of our

          9  homework, and we understand it was the same test.

         10  Frankly, I don't  believe that there is evidence out

         11  there, and if it is subsequently we will amend the

         12  bill, evidence out there -- well, there's evidence

         13  out there that says composite bats play like metal

         14  bats. So, what we did is put suspenders and belts on

         15  and say Major League Baseball says these bats are

         16  okay, let's put that on as an added protection. We

         17  could dispute, frankly, whether it's the same exact

         18  test, but it's a test of composite bats. It's not a

         19  test of metal bats, because Major League Baseball

         20  doesn't want to go anywhere near metal bats.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 No, no, I'm not done yet. With

         23  respect to Mr. Berg, Dr. Berg, you deserve to be

         24  called doctor, absolutely. Dr. Berg, we put into

         25  evidence previously testimony from Dr. Kremchek, the
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          2  team physician for the Cincinnati Reds and Dr.

          3  Nicholas from the Nicholas Institute locally here,

          4  that I think speak to their concerns and their

          5  experiences with dealing with kids and the damage

          6  from metal bats.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 MR. MANNING: Can I just respond to

          9  that, please?

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Yes, go

         11  ahead.

         12                 MR. MANNING: As I'm saying, these are

         13  all opinions by doctors. Unfortunately, none of them

         14  are substantiated by any of the objective evidence

         15  available to the scientific community.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         17  you.

         18                 Gentlemen, thank you for your

         19  testimony. At this time --

         20                 MR. CHAUVIN: There is one more on the

         21  panel.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Oh, I'm

         23  sorry, sir. I thought you did testify.

         24                 And your name is?

         25                 MR. CHAUVIN: My name is Dewey
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          2  Chauvin. I'm from Easton Sports. What I want to do

          3  is bring out that the bill is not supported by

          4  science, and it's been a misuse of many of the

          5  studies cited that say that aluminum bats out hit

          6  wood. The Tray Crisco (phonetic) or the Brown study,

          7  done with Dr. Tray Crisco and Dr. Rick Greenwald,

          8  not one of the aluminum bats is a BESR-approved bat.

          9  The test was done before the BESR rule.

         10                 One of the aluminum bats, though, was

         11  a minus three, two and five-eights bat, and they

         12  could not statistically determine that it hit

         13  differently than wood. So, there is nothing in that

         14  study that says aluminum bats out hit wood. Today's

         15  BESR-approved bats, out hit wood.

         16                 Dr. Nicholls, again, also used a

         17  non-BESR-approved bat because it predated the rule.

         18  She used a minus four two and three quarter inch

         19  bat, and the BESR rule is minus three and two and

         20  five-eights inch. Then she went on to do a computer

         21  study, computer model. The computer model is only as

         22  good as the assumptions and the mathematical rules

         23  that were put in place.

         24                 Now a computer model does not predict

         25  the batted ball speeds that she got off the same
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          2  wood and aluminum bat when players studied (sic). It

          3  grossly overpredicts it. Therefore, her model is

          4  incorrect, it's insufficient, it's inaccurate, it's

          5  purely speculative. So, again, there isn't any

          6  scientific data that says today's BESR-approved bats

          7  out hit wood bats.

          8                 Bats are now regulated. They have a

          9  BESR rule that has changed the way they perform.

         10  It's the same tests that you want to propose for the

         11  MLB protocol. There is no real reason to change the

         12  bats, there's no safety risk at this point that can

         13  be changed switching to wood bats.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         15  you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Mr. Chair, one

         17  question.

         18                 I just want to make clear for the

         19  record the Dr. Nicholas that I'm referring to is not

         20  the Dr. Nicholas that did the study in Australia.

         21  I'm talking about Steven Nicholas, the orthopedic

         22  surgeon. That's one.

         23                 Two, I've never cited, or we haven't

         24  cited, some people who testified may have but we're

         25  very aware and we've never, and we've stipulated to
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          2  Mr. Ettinger we don't cite the Brown study.

          3                 Since Dewey is here I want to put one

          4  thing on the record, and that's a then-confidential

          5  document that it was quote, "Ways to optimize the

          6  NYU Canon test." Basically I think it's ways of

          7  getting around the NYU Canon test. I'll just put

          8  that on the record, just that shows the insight of

          9  the industry and how they manipulate given tests.

         10  And the one quick question for Dewey is, have you

         11  ever taken the opportunity to test a composite bat

         12  in the field against the best wooden bat over the

         13  course of your career? And what did you find that

         14  composite bat to play like?

         15                 MR. CAUVIN: We test in our batting

         16  cage, and we find that the players hit about the

         17  same speed as the wood bat. We have semi-pro

         18  players, ex-ball MLB pro players come in and

         19  actually hit, and we get the same speeds with our

         20  new composite bat as we did with metal and wood

         21  bats.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, I just

         23  want to put into the record a document dated

         24  September 13th, 1993. It's a memo from Dewey to one

         25  of his colleagues. It talked about how they compared
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          2  in the field the then leading wood bat which was a

          3  Ricky Henderson model to a composite bat. I'll leave

          4  the brand of that bat out, and Dewey just said that

          5  this bat, testing shows that this composite bat to

          6  be a very good bat, able to compete with the better

          7  wooden bats. I just put that on the record. Thank

          8  you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         10  you.

         11                 Thank you, gentlemen, for your

         12  testimony.

         13                 MR. MANNING: I never got a chance to

         14  respond to his question.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: It

         16  wasn't a question, it was a comment from Council

         17  Member Oddo.

         18                 Seeing no additional witnesses at

         19  this time, I'm going to ask the clerk to call the

         20  roll.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK: Proposed Introduction

         22  341-A, Council Member Martinez.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Aye.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gonzalez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK: Mark-Viverito.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Aye.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK: Gallagher.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER: For Steven

          6  Domalewski and Brandon Patch, and all the other

          7  young ball players and future ball players, for

          8  their safety, I vote aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of four in

         10  the affirmative, zero in the negative and no

         11  abstentions, the item is adopted. Council Members,

         12  please sign the Committee report. Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARTINEZ: Thank

         14  you. At this time, I'm going to adjourn the meeting

         15  of the Youth Services Committee for the City Council

         16  of New York.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 12:25 p.m.)

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            61

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 12th day of March 2007.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

                                                            62

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

